
September 2, 2020 Via Zoom and Googledoc

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION 

POLICY COMMITTEE 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING 

AGENDA 

(Agenda Subject to Modification in Accordance with Law)

SPECIAL NOTICE ABOUT PROCEDURES FOR THIS ELECTRONIC MEETING: 

Pursuant to the Governor’s Executive Order No. 7B, there will not be a physical location for this
meeting. This meeting will be held electronically and live streamed on westportps.org and
shown on Optimum Government Access Channel 78 and Frontier Channel 6021. Emails to BOE
members can be sent to BOE@westportps.org. Comments to be read during the public
comment period must be submitted to the meeting’s Googledoc during the submission period.
Please see the following link for instructions and guidelines: https://www.westportps.org/
uploaded/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_
Meetings.pdf.  We will use our best efforts to read public comments if they are received during
the public comment period and if they state your full name and address. Meeting materials will
be available at westportps.org along with the meeting notice posted on the Meeting Agenda
page.

WORK SESSION:
9:00 a.m. Held Remotely Via Zoom Pursuant to Executive Order 7B

DISCUSSION/ACTION: 

1. Minutes: August 12, 2020, pages 1-2

DISCUSSION:

1. First Reading of the Following Policies:
 CABE Model Policy 5141.22, "Student Communicable and Infectious Diseases" (New),

page 3

 CABE 6114.8, “Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies“ (New), pages 4-6

 CABE 6114.81, “Emergency Suspension of Policy During Pandemic” (New), pages 7-9

 Policy 4118.5, “Acceptable Computer Network Use” (Revision), pages 10-13

 Policy 4118.22, “Code of Ethics” (New), pages 14-16

 Policy 5132, “Dress and Grooming” (New), pages 17-19

 Policy 4118.231/4218.231, “Alcohol, Drugs, and Tobacco” (Revision), pages 20-22

2. Second Reading of the Following Polices
 6172.6, “Online Courses” (New), pages 23-24

 3514.1, “Computer Loan” (Revision), page 25

3. Continued Reading of the Following Policies:
 6159, “Individualized Education/Special Education Program” (New), pages 26-29

 6171.2, “Preschool Students with Disabilities” (New), pages 30-32

 6172.4, “Title I Parental and Family Engagement Policy”, pages 33-35

4. Any Other Policy Matters

ADJOURNMENT 

https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf
https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf
https://www.westportps.org/uploaded/Procedures_and_Guidelines_for_Public_Participation_in_Remote_Board_Meetings.pdf


 

 

 
The meeting can also be viewed on Cablevision on channel 78; Frontier channel 6021 and by video stream @www.westportps.org 

 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION WELCOME USING THE FOLLOWING GUIDELINES: 
 Public comment will be accepted via a Google doc and the comments will be read aloud at the meeting. A link will be 

provided prior to the meeting. 
 There will be no in-person public comment due to public health concerns. 
 A maximum of 15 minutes will be provided for public comments. 

  Comments on agenda items are limited to 1 minute each. 
 

It is the policy of the Town of Westport that all Town-sponsored public meetings and events are 

accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in participating in a meeting or event due to 

a disability as defined under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Westport’s ADA 

Coordinator at 203-341-1043 or eflug@westportct.gov at least three (3) business days prior to the 

scheduled meeting or event to request an accommodation. 

 

mailto:eflug@westportct.gov


Meeting: August 12, 2020                           Via Zoom and Googledoc 
 
 

WESTPORT BOARD OF EDUCATION  
POLICY COMMITTEE WORK SESSION MINUTES  

  
  

Board Members Present: Administrators Present 
Karen Kleine Committee Chair John Bayers  Director of Human Resources 
Youn Su Chao  Suzanne Levasseur Supervisor of Health Services 

 
 

 
PUBLIC SESSION:  ​1:08 p.m., Held Remotely Via Zoom Pursuant to Executive Order 7B 

DISCUSSION/ACTION 

MINUTES: ​July 29, 2020 
 
Karen Kleine  moved to approve the minutes of May 26, 2020; seconded by Youn Su Chao and 
approved unanimously (2-0-0). 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
First Reading of the Following Policies: 

● P​olicy 4118.112/4218.112, “Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment in the 
Workplace” (Revision) 

● Policy 5145.5, “Policy Regarding Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment” 
(Revision) 

● CABE Model Policy 5141.8, "Face Masks and Coverings" (New) 
● CABE Model Policy 5141.22, "Student Communicable and Infectious Diseases" 

(New) 
● Shipman Model Policy "Policy Concerning Health and Safety Protocols Related 

to the COVID-19 Pandemic" (New) 
● CABE 6114.8, “Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies“ (New) 
● CABE 6114.81, “Emergency Suspension of Policy During Pandemic” (New) 
● Shipman Model Policy "Families First Coronavirus Response Act Leave" (New) 
● Policy 3520, “Green Cleaning Programs” (Revision) 
● Policy 4110,4210, “Employment Checks” (Revision) 
● Policy4118.5, “Acceptable Computer Network Use” (Revision) 
● Policy 6141.321, “Electronic Resources/Internet Safety” (Revision) 
● Shipman Model Policy "Use of Private Technology Devices" (New) 

September 2, 2020     Page 1



● Bylaw 9324, "Meeting Conduct" (Revision) and Shipman Model Policy "Meeting 
Conduct" 

 ​Thee following policies were recommended to go before the full Board for a first reading: 

● P​olicy 4118.112/4218.112, “Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment in the 
Workplace” (Revision) 

● Policy 5145.5, “Policy Regarding Sex Discrimination and Sexual Harassment” 
(Revision) 

● Shipman Model Policy "Policy Concerning Health and Safety Protocols Related 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic" (New) 

● Shipman Model Policy "Families First Coronavirus Response Act Leave" (New) 
● Policy 3520, “Green Cleaning Programs” (Revision) 
● Policy 4110,4210, “Employment Checks” (Revision) 
● Policy 6141.321, “Electronic Resources/Internet Safety” (Revision) 
● Shipman Model Policy "Use of Private Technology Devices" (New) 
● Bylaw 9324, "Meeting Conduct" (Revision) and Shipman Model Policy "Meeting 

Conduct" 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting adjourned at 2:36 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jennifer Caputo 

September 2, 2020     Page 2



5141.22

Students

Communicable and Infectious Diseases

The Board of Education recognizes that all children have a constitutional right to a free, suitable program of educational
experiences.  The Board of Education has established reasonable health requirements as prerequisites to admission or
attendance, including the requirement that students undergo physical examination prior to admission.

Where it can be medically established that a student suffers from a serious infectious disease and there is a significant risk of
transmission of the disease to others because of the nature of the disease or the personal characteristics of the student carrier,
it may be appropriate to exclude the student from the regular classroom. The determination of exclusion of any student will
be made on a case by case basis with appropriate procedural due process safeguards.  However, where the risk of
transmission is relatively low or appropriate procedures can be adopted to reduce the risk of transmission, exclusion is not
warranted.

A child with an infectious disease may be considered handicapped, if the condition presents such physical impairment that
limits one or more major life activities.  Therefore, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, the "Education of all Handicapped
Children Act" may apply.  The parent, guardian or the school administration may make a referral for determination whether
the student is handicapped and entitled to protection under Section 504.  The Planning and Placement Team will determine
whether the student is handicapped or is "otherwise qualified" within the meaning of Section 504.  All students should be
educated in the least restrictive environment.

The District will include as part of its emergency procedure plan a description of the actions to be taken by District
personnel in case of pandemic flu outbreak or other catastrophe that disrupts District operations.

(cf. 5111 Admission)

(cf. 5142 Student Safety)

(cf. 5141 Student Health Services)

(cf. 6162 Individualized Education Program/Special Education Program)

Legal Reference:  "Education for Children with Disabilities", 20 U.S.C. 1400, et seq.

Section 505 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 706(7)(b)

"Americans with Disabilities Act"

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. 1232g, 45 C.F.R. 99

Connecticut General Statutes

10-76(d)(15) Duties and powers of Boards of education to provide special education programs and
services.

10-154a Professional communications between teacher or nurse and student

10-207 Duties of medical advisors

10-209 Records not to be public

10-210 Quarantine of certain persons

19a-581-585 AIDS testing and medical information

Policy adopted:
September 2, 2020     Page 3

http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=241&z2collection=core#JD_5111
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=326&z2collection=core#JD_5142
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_19a.htm


P6114.8(a) 

An optional and revised policy to consider on this issue. 

Instruction 

Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 

Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies 

The Board of Education (Board) recognizes that a pandemic/epidemic outbreak is a serious threat 
that stands to affect students, staff, and the community as a whole.  With this consideration in 
mind, the Board establishes this policy in the event the town/municipality and/or school district is 
threatened by a reasonably likely pandemic/epidemic outbreak.  At all times the health, safety and 
welfare of the students shall be of foremost concern along with the health, safety and welfare of 
the District employees and mindful of the overall health and welfare of the community. 

Planning and Coordination 

The Superintendent shall designate the head School Nurse or other appropriate staff members who 
in conjunction with the School Medical Advisor, shall serve as a liaison between the school district 
and local and state health officials.  This designee and the School Medical Advisor are jointly 
responsible for connecting with health officials to identify local hazards, determine what crisis 
plans exist in the school district and community, and to establish procedures to account for student 
well-being and safety during such a crisis.  The designee shall work with local health officials and 
shall keep the Superintendent advised when the risk of a pandemic or an epidemic of a serious 
illness has materially increased. 

The Principals and/or school nurse or other designee shall develop a curriculum component to 
health classes that is designed to teach students about preventing or limiting the spread of 
communicable diseases. 

The District shall purchase and store supplies necessary for an epidemic/pandemic outbreak, 
including but not limited to disinfectant products, face masks, water, examination gloves, and other 
supplies as recommended by the school nurse and/or School Medical Advisor and the Connecticut 
Department of Public Health. 

The Superintendent shall develop procedures and plans for the transportation of students in the 
event of an evacuation.  Such procedures shall include provisions for students who cannot be 
transported to home at the time of the evacuation. 

Response 

In the event anyone within the school is discovered or suspected to have a communicable disease 
that may result in an epidemic/pandemic, that person shall be immediately quarantined pending 
further medical examination, as recommended by state and national protocols.  Local and state 
health officials shall be notified immediately. 

In conjunction with local and state health officials, the Superintendent shall ascertain whether an 
evacuation (school closing), lockdown, or shelter-in-place needs to be established.  As soon as 
such a decision has been made, the school district shall notify the parents/guardians of all students. 

September 2, 2020     Page 4



P6114.8(b) 

Instruction 

Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 

Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies (continued) 

In the event of an evacuation (school closing), the Superintendent is charged with determining 
when District schools shall re-open.  In the event of a lockdown or shelter-in-place, the 
Superintendent shall notify all proper authorities and relief agencies to seek their assistance for the 
duration of the lockdown or shelter-in-place. 

Infection Control 

Any student or staff member found to be infected with a communicable disease that bears risk of 
pandemic/epidemic will not be allowed to attend school until medical clearance is provided by that 
individual’s primary care physician or other medical personnel indicating that that person does not 
bear the risk of transmitting the communicable disease. 

Students with excessive absences due to a communicable disease shall be given a reprieve from 
other Board policies relative to excessive student absences.  Efforts will be made by the staff to 
determine what, if any, school work the student can complete while absent. 

Staff members who are forced to miss excessive days of work shall first use any leave entitled to 
them through the Family and Medical Leave Act and/or accrued sick leave.  If a staff member has 
still not received medical clearance to resume his/her work duties, absences in excess of a staff 
member’s allotted leave be managed through existing contract provisions and will not affect the 
employee’s right to continued employment. 

Continuance of Education 

The Superintendent shall develop a plan of alternate means of educating students in the event of 
prolonged school closings and/or extended absences.  Such a plan may include, but are not limited 
to, providing students with assignments via mail or by email, local access cable television, or the 
school district’s website. 

The Superintendent, in consultation with the Board of Education, may amend the traditional class 
schedule and schedule of days.  Such a plan may include extending the school day, having school 
days held on Saturdays if Connecticut statute changes, the use of previously scheduled vacation 
days, and/or extend the school year beyond the previously established end of school year, within 
applicable statutory requirements. 

(cf. 5141.22 – Communicable/Infectious Diseases) 
(cf. 5141.6 – Crisis Management Plan) 
(cf. 6114 – Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness) 
(cf. 6114.6 – Emergency Closings) 

September 2, 2020     Page 5



P6114.8(c) 

Instruction 

Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness 

Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies 

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes 

10-154a Professional communications between teacher or nurse and 
student. 

10-207 Duties of medical advisors. 

10-209 Records not to be public. 

10-210 Notice of disease to be given parent or guardian. 

10-221 Boards of education to prescribe rules. 

19a-221 Quarantine of certain persons. 

52-557b Immunity from liability for emergency medical assistance, first aid 
or medication by injection.  School personnel not required to administer or 
render. 

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, (FERPA), 20 
U.S.C. 1232g, 45 C.F.R. 99. 

Policy adopted: 
cps 1/07 
rev 12/09 
rev 2/20 

Sample policies are distributed for demonstration purposes only.  Unless so noted, contents do not necessarily reflect official policies of the 
Connecticut Association of Boards of Education, Inc. 

September 2, 2020     Page 6



6114.81

Instruction

Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness

Pandemic/Epidemic Emergencies

Emergency Suspension of Policy During Pandemic

The Board of Education (Board) is authorized by statute to govern the District, including the adoption, revision, and
suspension of Board policies.

The Board, through this policy, acknowledges school closures in response to a pandemic/epidemic and designates the
Superintendent of Schools or his/her designee to act as a liaison for the District to ensure the health and safety of students,
staff, and the community.

The World Health Organization on March 11, 2020 characterized COVID-19 as a pandemic. Governor Lamont declared a
state of emergency and directed implementation of appropriate plans and procedures in response to the novel coronavirus
(COVID-19). This action included closure of all Connecticut public schools. President Trump declared a national state of
emergency.

The Connecticut State Department of Education (CSDE) has authority to waive instructional hours and school days, to
interpret graduation requirements, and to oversee the allocation of resources for nutrition, transportation, and other crucial
aspects of public education and is providing written guidance to school districts on issues related to COVID -19, including
but not limited to student attendance, distance/online learning, high school credit, meal distribution, and other issues.

Temporary Powers Granted to Superintendent of Schools

The Board grants to the Superintendent the following temporary powers to address the COVID-19 pandemic emergency:

1.  Authority to temporarily waive such Board policies or provisions of Board policies as the Superintendent shall deem
necessary to comply with guidance from appropriate health or governmental authorities or necessary for other effective
response.

2.  Authority to take any lawful actions necessary to ensure the continuation of public education, to provide for the health
and safety of students and employees, or to respond to direction from appropriate health and government authorities.
Such action may include, but are not limited to, adjustments to the curriculum and the provision of alternate educational
program options; modifications to the school calendar; adjustments to the delivery of school-provided meals; limitations
on access to District property; applying to any governmental body for financial or other aid as may be available; and
applying to any governmental body for waiver of regulations or requirements, compliance with which is affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic emergency.

3.  Authority to enter into contracts without Board approval for any dollar amount for the purchase of materials,
equipment, supplies, or services for sanitation, cleaning, technology, or other needs directly related to the COVID-19
emergency situation, provided such action is consistent with all applicable State and Federal laws.

4.  Authority to close any school facility without further action by this Board. Such closure shall continue during the
emergency created by the COVID-19 pandemic until such time as the Superintendent, in consultation with appropriate
health and government authorities, deems it in the best interests of the District and its students to open schools.

5.  Authority based upon the needs of the District and the guidance from health and government agencies disseminated by
CSDE, to direct staff assignments during District closures, including but not limited to essential employees who must
report to work, employees who may be reassigned, and employees whose services are not needed.

6.  Authority to limit access to public school grounds and District buildings during school closures.

7.  Authority to waive the requirements requiring advertising for bids and competitive bid procedures for purchases which
may be necessary due to the emergency. The Superintendent will document the reasons for which prompt remedial action
is necessary to prevent physical injury to persons or to property of the District.

September 2, 2020     Page 7



Suspension of Policies

The Board hereby suspends provisions of its policies and/or whole policies, as identified by the Superintendent or designee,
if such suspension is necessary to implement the written guidance from CSDE relating to containing COVID-19 for the
duration identified in the Governor's order of school closure.

Consultation with Board of Education

The Superintendent shall consult with and report to the Board as feasible, appropriate and timely regarding the emergency
closure and efforts to implement written guidance from health and government agencies as disseminated by CSDE and other
state agencies pertaining to this pandemic situation.

Board of Education Meetings

In the interest of public health, the Board encourages the public to attend its open public meetings [modify as feasible for
your district] via live streaming on television and/or the internet and to limit public comment to written comments. The
Board reserves the right to adjust Board meeting dates, times, and locations during the District-wide emergency closure in a
manner consistent with the Freedom of Information Act. Further, any or all Board members may attend Board meetings
electronically.

(cf. 1120 - Public Participation at Board Meetings)

(cf. 2210 - Administrative Leeway in Absence of Board Policy

(cf. 3323 - Soliciting Prices)

(cf. 3542 - Food Service)

(cf. 3542.31 - Free or Reduced Price Lunches)

(cf. 5110 - Attendance)

(cf. 5113 - Attendance and Excuses)

(cf. 5118.1 - Homeless Students)

(cf. 5141.22 - Communicable/Infectious Diseases)

(cf. 5141.6 - Crisis Management Plan)

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar)

(cf. 6114 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness)

(cf. 6114.6 - Emergency Closings)

(cf. 6114.8 - Pandemic/Epidemic Emergency

(cf. 6146 - Graduation Requirements)

(cf. 6159/6171 - Special Education)

(cf. 6172.6 - Virtual/Online Courses)

(cf. 9321 - Time, Place, Notification of Meetings)

(cf. 9325 - Meeting Conduct)

(cf. 9325.43 - Attendance at Meetings via Electronic Communications)

Legal Reference:  Connecticut General Statutes

10-154a Professional communications between teacher or nurse and student.
September 2, 2020     Page 8

http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=28&z2collection=core#JD_1120
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=105&z2collection=core#JD_3323
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=142&z2collection=core#JD_3542
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=145&z2collection=core#JD_3542.31
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=245&z2collection=core#JD_5113
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=264&z2collection=core#JD_5118.1
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=315&z2collection=core#JD_5141.22
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=322&z2collection=core#JD_5141.6
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=374&z2collection=core#JD_6111
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=376&z2collection=core#JD_6114
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=380&z2collection=core#JD_6114.8
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=434&z2collection=core#JD_6146
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=444&z2collection=core#JD_6159
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=462&z2collection=core#JD_6171
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=468&z2collection=core#JD_6172.6
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=520&z2collection=core#JD_9321
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=524&z2collection=core#JD_9325
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm


10-207 Duties of medical advisors.

10-209 Records not to be public.

10-210 Notice of disease to be given parent or guardian.

10 221 Boards of education to prescribe rules.

19a-221 Quarantine of certain persons.

The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. 1232g, 45 C.F.R. 99.

Policy adopted:

September 2, 2020     Page 9

http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_19a.htm


P 4118.5(a)-C19 
4218.5-C19 

Personnel - Certified-Non-Certified 

Acceptable Computer Network Use 

Employees are advised that in accordance with state law there should be no expectation of privacy 
while using the school system’s computers or E-mail service. The Board of Education’s policy 
specifically states that computer use can be monitored to assure compliance. 

These rules are in effect for use of: 

• Computers/electronic resources provided by the Westport schools.
• Privately owned resources while on school property.

These rules apply to the following while on school property and/or using school equipment: 

• All employees of the school system.
• Employees of the food services department and the bus company.
• Anyone working in or on behalf of the school system, e.g., consultants, subs, temporary and

part-time workers. 
• Volunteer, including parents.

The following practices are prohibited: 

1. Downloading onto a school computer material that is copyrighted and/or programs you are
not licensed to use. 

2. Conducting personal private or commercial business not related to school system
responsibilities, other than incidental personal use that does not interfere with job duties. 

3. Hacking into any computers that you are not authorized to use.

4. Making any unauthorized changes to programs in use by the school system or to material
that belongs to another. 

5. Using the computer to threaten, intimidate, harass or otherwise violate the rights of anyone.

6. Downloading, viewing or transmitting sexually explicit material or material that is
pornographic or obscene. 

7. Downloading, viewing or transmitting material that attacks ethnic, religious and racial
groups except for bone fide educational purposes directly related to one’s assignment. 

8. Sending any message for an illegal purpose or in any illegal manner.

9. Making any additions to, deletions from, or alterations of the school district’s website or the
website of any school, without authorization. 

September 2, 2020     Page 10



P 4118.5(b) 
4218.5 

 
 
 

Personnel - Certified-Non-Certified 
 

Acceptable Computer Network Use (continued) 
 
 
10. Using school system resources for politicking or religious proselytizing. 

11. Installing programs on a school system computer without the approval and/or assistance of a 
member of the technical staff. 

 
You should know that certain violations of these rules, e.g. copyright violation, may also constitute 
a violation of state or federal law. 
 
In conformity to Board policy, failure to comply with these rules will result in loss of computer 
privileges and may result in disciplinary action, up to and including discharge. Due process 
rights will be protected. 
 
E-Mail 
 
The e-mail system is made available as a resource to staff members for official and necessary 
professional communications. While occasional incidental personal use is not prohibited, staff 
members are advised to avoid using it as their personal e-mail program because it is not a private 
or secure communication and could be subject to Freedom of Information requirements, 
subpoenaed, etc. 
 
E-mail to Colleagues 
 
1. If possible, avoid using names of students or parents in e-mail messages, and do not send 

sensitive or confidential information about yourself, other staff members, students, or 
parents through e-mail, even without their names. 

2. Always use the heading “Draft” when working on documents that you are developing or 
revising.  Ultimately they may become permanent records subject to disclosure under the 
Freedom of Information Act, but use of the heading “Draft” may clarify that documents are 
not subject to disclosure because they are “preliminary drafts or notes” under the FOIA. 
Please note, however, that the exemption may be lost when you share a draft with colleagues 
as part of the decision-making process and that such documents may be subject to public 
disclosure. 

3. Use e-mail for messages of a transitory nature only and delete unneeded messages very 
soon, and regularly. 

4. E-mail to colleagues should be used for professional matters. It should not be used to air 
personal or individual concerns to groups of other staff members or to convey derogatory 
sentiments about other staff members or groups. 

5. Permission is required for staff members to use e-mail for communications to large groups, 
i.e., an entire department, school, bargaining unit or school district. 

September 2, 2020     Page 11



P 4118.5(c) 
4218.5 

 
 
 

Personnel - Certified-Non-Certified 
 

Acceptable Computer Network Use (continued) 
 
 
E-mail to Students and Parents 
 
1. For your own protection, think of e-mail as if it were a permanent communication because a 

recipient can print it and make it permanent, or forward it to someone else. Therefore, don’t 
say anything you wouldn’t put into a written letter or that you would be unwilling to share 
with many people, including strangers, etc. 

2. For your further protection, the content of messages to students should deal strictly with 
school-related matters. Don’t feel obligated to respond to personal content, and don’t use e-
mail as a personal conversation. Keep your messages brief and to the point. Don’t have 
prolonged e-mail “chats” with students or parents. 

3. To avoid being imposed upon, let students know what topics may be dealt with in e-mail. 
Students are not entitled to a private tutorial via e-mail. It is not a substitute for the student 
who didn’t take notes in class or didn’t write down the assignment. 

4. If you set up a conference with all parents’ e-mail addresses, communications should deal 
strictly with matters pertaining to the class. The conference should not be used to air 
personal concerns to groups of parents, or to communicate about private political, 
entrepreneurial, avocational, religious, charitable, or other activities in which you engage. 

5. If the volume of e-mail becomes burdensome for you, set up a time frame for both receiving 
and answering e-mail and communicate that time frame to students and parents so that they 
do not expect instantaneous answers to their questions. 

 
Computers, computer networks, electronic devices, Internet access, and e-mail are effective and 
important technological resources.  The Board of Education provides has installed computers,  and a 
computer network, including Internet access and an e-mail system, on Board premises and may 
provide other electronic devices that can access the network such as wireless and/or portable 
electronic hand-held equipment that can be used for word processing, wireless Internet access, 
image capture and recording, sound recording, information transmitting and/or receiving, storing, 
etc. (including, but not limited to, personal laptops, Smartphones, network access devices, Kindles, 
Nooks, cellular telephones, radios, personal cassette players, CD players, iPads or other tablet 
computers, walkie-talkies, Blackberries, personal data assistants, iPhones, Androids and other 
electronic signaling devices).  The  Board’s computers, computer networks, electronic devices, 
Internet access, and e-mail are (referred to collectively as “the computer systems”) and are provided 
in order to enhance both the educational opportunities for our students and the business operations 
of the district.   
 
These computer systems are business and educational tools.  As such, they are made available to 
Board employees for business and education related uses.  The Administration shall develop 
regulations setting forth procedures to be used by the Administration in an effort to ensure that such 
computer systems are used for appropriate business and education related purposes.   

September 2, 2020     Page 12



 
In accordance with applicable laws and the Administrative Regulations associated with this Policy, 
the system administrator and others managing the computer systems may access email or monitor 
activity on the computer system or electronic devices accessing the computer systems at any time 
and for any reason or no reason.  Typical examples include when there is reason to suspect 
inappropriate conduct or there is a problem with the computer systems needing correction.  Further, 
the system administrator and others managing the computer systems can access or monitor activity 
on the systems despite the use of passwords by individual users, and can bypass such passwords.  In 
addition, review of emails, messages or information stored on the computer systems, which can be 
forensically retrieved, includes those messages and/or electronic data sent, posted and/or retrieved 
using social networking sites, including, but not limited to, Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn, YouTube, 
and MySpace. 
 
Incidental personal use of the computer systems may be permitted solely for the purpose of e-mail 
transmissions and access to the Internet on a limited, occasional basis.  Such incidental personal use 
of the computer systems, however, is subject to all rules, including monitoring of all such use, as the 
Superintendent may establish through regulation.  Moreover, any such incidental personal use shall 
not interfere in any manner with work responsibilities.   
 
Users should not have any expectation of personal privacy in the use of the computer system or 
other electronic devices that access the computer system.  Use of the computer system represents an 
employee’s acknowledgement that the employee has read and understands this policy and any 
applicable regulations in their entirety, including the provisions regarding monitoring and review of 
computer activity. 
 
Legal Reference:  
 

Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-40x 
Conn. Gen. Stat. § 31-48d 
Conn. Gen. Stat. §§ 53a-182; 53a-183; 53a-250 
 
Electronic Communication Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510 through 2520 

 
Connecticut General Statutes 
 
   The Freedom of Information Act. 
 
   PA 98-142 an Act Requiring Notice to Employees of Electronic Monitoring 
by employees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy adopted: September 1, 2003 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
Policy revised: 2006 Westport, Connecticut 
Policy revised: 

September 2, 2020     Page 13



 
 

 

 

 

8651792v1 © 2020 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved. 

Series 4000 

Personnel 

 

Code of Ethics and Professional Responsibility for Personnel 

 

The ______ Board of Education (the “Board”) requires all Board employees to follow 

any applicable Board policy concerning employee conduct, maintain high ethical and 

professional standards, and exhibit professional conduct and responsibility.   

 

Board employees shall comply with the following standards: 

 

1. Maintain a just and courteous professional relationship with students, parents, staff 

members, Board members, and others. 

 

2. Make the well-being of students the fundamental value of all decision-making and 

actions. 

 

3. Fulfill professional responsibilities with honesty and integrity. 

 

4. Support the principle of due process and protect the civil and human rights of all 

individuals. 

 

5. Obey local, state, and national laws. 

 

6. Adhere to, implement, and (as applicable) enforce the Board’s policies and 

administrative rules and regulations. 

 

7. Avoid using positions for personal gain through political, social, religious, economic, 

or other influence. 

 

8. Accept academic degrees or professional certification only from duly accredited 

institutions. 

 

9. Maintain the standards and seek to improve the effectiveness of the profession through 

research and continuing professional development. 

 

10. Honor all contracts until fulfillment, release, or dissolution mutually agreed upon by 

all parties to the contract. 

11.  Refrain from engaging or participating in any activity and/or conduct, whether on duty 

or off duty, that is incompatible with the proper discharge of the employee’s official duties, 

that would tend to impair the employee’s independent judgment or action in the 

September 2, 2020     Page 14



 

2 
8651792v1 © 2020 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved. 

performance of the employee’s professional duties, and/or that would erode the public’s 

trust in the employee’s ability to fulfill his/her professional duties. 

12.  Exhibit candor with supervisors and report to a supervisor any arrest or conviction of 

the employee that could erode the public’s trust in the employee’s ability to fulfill his/her 

professional duties. 

13.  Refrain from soliciting, accepting, or receiving, directly or indirectly, from any person, 

by rebate, gifts, or otherwise, any money, or anything of value whatsoever, or any promise, 

obligation, or contract for future reward or compensation in exchange for the performance 

of his/her duties as a Board employee.  It is recognized that instructional personnel may 

receive unsolicited gifts from time to time from students and their families, typically 

associated with holidays, the end of the year or other special occasions.  This policy is not 

intended to prevent school personnel from accepting typical and customary gifts from 

students and their families in such circumstances [OPTIONAL:  in accordance with Board 

Policy # _____].  

14.  Refrain from offering or providing any special consideration, treatment, favor, or 

advantage to any person, beyond that which is generally available to students and their 

families. 

15.  Teachers must adhere to the Connecticut Code of Professional Responsibility for 

Teachers (Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies Section 10-145d-400a), which Code is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

16.  Administrators must adhere to the Connecticut Code of Professional Responsibility for 

School Administrators (Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies Section 10-145d-400b), 

which Code is incorporated herein by reference. 

Violations of this policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of 

employment. 

 

Legal References: 

 

Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies, § 10-145d-400a Code of Professional 

Responsibility for Teachers; Connecticut Code of Professional  

 

Regulations of Connecticut State Agencies, § 10-145d-400b, Code of Professional 

Responsibility for School Administrators 

 

 
4/22/2020  
 

September 2, 2020     Page 15



4118.22

Personnel -- Certified

Code of Ethics

Certified staff should be mature, well-balanced, and should observe professional ethics and cooperate with and support the
administration.  It is expected that certified staff members demonstrate knowledge of the Connecticut Code of Professional
Responsibility for Teachers. Certified staff are also bound to the Code of Ethics in their respective areas of discipline.  The
Board of Education accepts as a guide for certified staff the Connecticut Education Association Code of Ethics.

Legal Reference:  Connecticut Education Association Code of Ethics

Connecticut Code of Professional Responsibility for Teachers

Regulation of Connecticut State Agencies

Section 10-145d-4001

Policy adopted:

September 2, 2020     Page 16



238929v5  © 2020 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved.

Series 5000 

Students 

STUDENT DRESS 

In order to maintain an environment conducive to the educational process, the 

_____________ Board of Education (the “Board”) prohibits the following from wear 

during the academic school day: 

a. Coats, jackets or other attire normally worn as outerwear.  Outerwear

includes: coats, jackets, windbreakers, nylon pullovers, down vests, and

other clothing the administration deems inappropriate.  Outer wear shall

not be worn, carried, or kept in the classroom during regular school hours.

b. Head coverings of any kind, including but not limited to scarves,

bandannas, masks, headbands, visors, kerchiefs, athletic sweatbands, hats,

caps, or hoods. Approved coverings worn as part of a student's religious

practice or belief, or as required or permitted in conjunction with school

district health and safety protocols, shall not be prohibited under this

policy.  Head coverings shall not be worn, carried, hung on belts or around

the neck, or kept in the classroom during regular school hours.

c. Items a. and b. above must be secured in the student's locker or other

storage area before school starts.  Items not stored will be confiscated by

the administration.

d. Footwear which mars floors or is a safety hazard.

e. Sunglasses, whether worn or carried, unless required pursuant to a

documented medical issue.

f. "Name" or other oversized metal belt buckles and all metal belts or

combination of metal and leather belts.

g. Spiked or studded bracelets, oversized or multi-finger rings, belts or any

other article of attire with spikes or studs attached, or any other clothing

item that may present a safety hazard to the student, other students or staff.

h. Attire or accessories that contain vulgarity or that contain overly offensive

or disruptive writing or pictures, which are likely to disrupt the

educational environment.

September 2, 2020     Page 17



 

- 2 - 
238929v5  © 2020 Shipman & Goodwin LLP. All rights reserved. 

i. Attire or accessories depicting or suggesting violence so as to disrupt the 

educational environment or that provokes others to act violently or causes 

others to be intimidated by fear of violence or that constitute "fighting 

words,” including but not limited to attire or accessories depicting the 

Confederate flag and/or the Nazi swastika. 

 

j. Attire or accessories that depict logo or emblems that encourage the use of 

drugs, tobacco products, or alcoholic beverages. 

k. Shirts and/or blouses that reveal the abdomen, chest, or undergarments. 

 

l. See-through clothing, tank tops or sleeveless shirts. 

 

m. Shorts, miniskirts, or pants that reveal the upper thigh or undergarments. 

Spandex garments are allowed only if they are covered by shorts or skirts. 

 

N. Backpacks and/or book bags are permitted to be carried between classes, 

but shall not obstruct safe passage in the classroom or in the corridors. 

 

Students who fail to comply with Board policy and regulations concerning student 

dress will be subject to school discipline up to and including expulsion in accordance 

with the Board's policy on student discipline.   

 

 

 

 

ADOPTED:_______ 

REVISED:________ 

 

 

 

 
7.22.20 

September 2, 2020     Page 18



5132

Students

Dress and Grooming

The Board of Education encourages students to dress in clothing appropriate to the school situation. The primary
responsibility for a student's attire resides with the student and their parent(s) or guardian(s). The District is responsible for
seeing that student attire does not interfere with the health or safety of any student, that student attire does not contribute to a
hostile or intimidating atmosphere for any student and that dress code enforcement does not increase marginalization or
suppression of any group based on race, sex, gender identity, gender expression, sexual orientation, ethnicity, religion,
cultural observance or body type/size.

Restrictions on freedom of student dress may be applied whenever the mode of dress in question:

1. is unsafe either for the student or those around the student.

2. is disruptive to school operations and the education process in general.

3. is contrary to law.

No restrictions on freedom of dress and adornment will be imposed which

1. reflect discrimination as to civil rights.

2. enforce particular codes of morality or religious tenets.

3. attempt to dictate or adjudicate style or taste.

4. do not fall within the direct or implied powers of the Board of Education.

Any restriction to the way a student dresses must be necessary to support the District's over-all educational goals.

The administration is encouraged to establish any needed regulations consistent with this policy through cooperative planning
with staff, students and parents.

(cf. 5132.1 - Uniforms: Dress & Grooming)

(cf. 5145.4 - Nondiscrimination)

(cf. 5145.5 - Sexual Harassment)

(cf. 5145.511 - Sexual Abuse Prevention and Education Program)

(cf. 5145.53 - Transgender and Non-Conforming Youth)

Legal Reference:  Connecticut General Statutes

10-221 Boards of education to prescribe rules

Policy adopted:

September 2, 2020     Page 19

http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=300&z2collection=core#JD_5132.1
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=363&z2collection=core#JD_5145.5
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=365&z2collection=core#JD_5145.511
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=367&z2collection=core#JD_5145.53
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_10.htm
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=299&z2collection=core#JD_5132


4118.231

4218.231

Personnel --Certified/Non-Certified

Alcohol, Drugs & Tobacco

Tobacco (Smoking)

The Westport Board of Education recognizes the deleterious health effect of smoking, and second-hand smoke.  The Board
also recognizes that adults should be providing positive role models for students.  Therefore, the Board of Education
prohibits any student or adult smoking on school property or at school-sponsored events at any time.  The Board of Education
is supportive of a system-wide educational campaign, about the harmfulness of smoking, and of programs of assistance to
help smokers cure the habit.

Staff and Other Adults: Staff and other adults are not permitted to smoke at any time in school buildings, on school
grounds, on school buses, vans or any school-provided transportation, or at any school-sponsored activity.  Smoking is
prohibited in any offices assigned to, or public reception areas used by Board of Education personnel, and at public meetings
held under the aegis of the Board of Education.

Alcohol and Drugs

As required by state and federal laws (Drug-Free Workplace Act and Drug-Free Schools Act) the Board explicitly prohibits
any employee to unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess or use the following, in or on school premises or as
part of any school activity: alcohol or any narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine, barbiturate, marijuana or any
other controlled substance.  Disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to, a letter of reprimand, suspension or
termination from employment or referral for criminal prosecution.

(cf. 1120 Board of Education Meetings)

(cf. 1330 Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 5131.6 Drugs, Tobacco, and Alcohol)

Legal Reference:  Connecticut General Statutes

19a-342 Smoking prohibited in certain places. Signs required. Penalties.

21a-242 Schedules of controlled substances

Drug-Free Workplace Act 102 Statute 4305-4308.

Drug-Free Schools and Community Act, P.L. 99-570, as amended y P.L. 101-226 (1991)

21 U.S.C. 812, Controlled Substances Act, I through V, 202.

21 C.F.R. 1300.11 through 1300.15 regulation.

54 Fed. Reg. 4946 (1989)

1-21b Smoking prohibited in certain places.

Policy adopted:  October 1, 1987

Policy modified:  April 4, 1997

Policy modified:  August 20, 2001

September 2, 2020     Page 20

http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=10&z2collection=westport#JD_1120
http://z2policy.cabe.org/cabe/docid=19&z2collection=westport#JD_1330
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_19a.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_21a.htm
http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_01.htm


4118.231/4218.231

Personnel - Certified and Non-Certified

Smoking, Drinking, and Use of Drugs on School Premises

Introduction

The Board of Education is concerned with maintaining a safe and healthy working and learning environment for all staff and
students. Medical research indicates that the use of alcohol, drugs and tobacco are hazardous to one's health. In addition to
the health hazard to the individual, certified employees are entrusted with the responsibility of imparting knowledge and
serving as role models to students.

Alcohol and Drugs 

The Board of Education recognizes the importance of maintaining a drug-free environment for its staff and students. In
compliance with federal and state requirements, employees are prohibited from the unlawfully manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use on or in the workplace any alcohol, narcotic drug, hallucinogenic drug, amphetamine,
barbiturate, marijuana or any other controlled substance. Controlled drugs are further defined in Schedules I through V of
Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further defined by regulation at 21 C.F.R. 1300.11
through 1300.15.

The "workplace" is defined to mean the site for the performance of work done. That includes any school building or any
school premises; any school-owned vehicle or any other school-approved vehicle used to transport students to and from
school or school activities; off school property during any school-sponsored or school-approved activity, event or function,
such as a field trip or athletic event, where students are under the jurisdiction of the school district.

Each employee shall notify his or her supervisor of his or her conviction for any criminal drug statute violation occurring in
the workplace as defined above, no later than 5 days after such conviction.

Each employee shall abide by the terms of the school district policy respecting a drug-free and alcohol-free workplace.

An employee who violates the terms of this policy may be required to complete successfully an appropriate rehabilitation
program, or may not be renewed, or his/her employment may be suspended or terminated, at the discretion of the Board.

Tobacco

There shall be no smoking or other use of tobacco products on school property during regular school hours, on transportation
provided by the Board of Education, or during the course of any trip sponsored by the Board or under the supervision of the
Board or its authorized agents.

For the purposes of this policy, 'Tobacco product" is defined to include, but is not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, blunts, bidis,
pipes, chewing tobacco and all other forms of smokeless tobacco, rolling papers and any other items containing or reasonably
resembling tobacco or tobacco products, such as electronic cigarettes.

Promulgation of Rules

A copy of this policy, and the consequences of violating the policy, shall be distributed to all employees of the Board of
Education. Failure to comply with the policy may result in disciplinary action as detailed by the administration.

Legal Reference:  Drug-Free Workplace Act. 102 Stat. 4305-4308.

Drug-Free Schools and Community Act, P.L. 99-570, as amended by P.L. 101-226 (1991)

21 U.S.C. 812, Controlled Substances Act, I through V, 202.

21 C.F.R. 1300.11 through 1300.15 regulation

54 Fed. Reg. 4946 (1989)

Connecticut General Statutes
September 2, 2020     Page 21



19a-342 Smoking prohibited in certain places

Policy adopted:

September 2, 2020     Page 22

http://www.cga.ct.gov/current/pub/title_19a.htm


P 6172.6 

Instruction 

Online Courses 

The Westport Board of Education (“Board”) recognizes the importance of technology in 

education and the growing popularity and use of online coursework.  In that regard, and in 

accordance with Connecticut General Statutes § 10-221a, the Board sanctions the receipt of 

online course credit to be used toward high school graduation requirements, in accordance with 

this policy. 

Pre-approval of Courses Identified by Students and Parents 

To receive credit for online courses to be used toward high school graduation requirements, 

students must, prior to registering for the course, receive approval from the high school principal 

or his/her designee.  The decision of the principal or his/her designee with regard to online course 

credit approval is final.  Pre-approval for online course credit may be granted if the requirements 

set forth below are met. 

District-Provided Distance Learning 

Students may also earn credit for high school graduation by participating successfully in distance 

learning offered by the Board during the COVID-19 health emergency, or other long-term school 

closure related to a community-wide emergency.  Determination of successful participation will 

be made by the teacher teaching the course through district-provided distance learning, taking 

into account work performed by the student prior to the school closure. 

Requirements for Online Coursework 

1. The workload required by the online course is substantially equivalent to that of a

similar course taught in a traditional classroom setting; 

2. The content of the online course is rigorous and aligned with curriculum

guidelines approved by the State Board of Education, where appropriate; 

3. The course engages students and has interactive components, which may include,

but are not limited to, required interactions between students and their teachers, 

participation in online demonstrations, discussion boards or virtual labs;  

4. The program of instruction for such online coursework is planned, ongoing and

systematic; 

5. The courses are:

a. taught by teachers who are certified in Connecticut or another state and

have received training on teaching in an online environment, or 

b. offered by institutions of higher education that are accredited by the Board

of Regents for Higher Education or regionally accredited; and 

September 2, 2020     Page 23



6. The principal has determined, in his or her professional judgment, that, given the

student’s academic and disciplinary history, the student is appropriately suited to 

engage in online coursework. 

7. Prerequisites for credit are completed as determined by the principal or his or her

designee. 

Additional Requirements 

Only students in grades 9-12 are eligible to receive credit toward high school graduation by 

taking online courses.  Students who have been pre-approved shall receive such credit upon 

completing the online course and obtaining a passing grade.   

Any expense incurred for taking an online course identified by the student and/or parent shall be 

the responsibility of the student/parent and shall not be the responsibility of the Board. Distance 

learning provided to students during the COVID-19 or other community-wide emergency shall be 

provided at Board expense. 

Policy adopted: WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Westport, Connecticut 

September 2, 2020     Page 24



P  3514.1 

Business/Non-Instructional Operations 

Computer Loan Programof School District Equipment 

To ensure that each student has equitable access to the technology needed to achieve learning 

outcomes that are dependent on technology, the Board authorizes the loan of computers and 

appropriate grade-level software for students with demonstrated financial need.  The Board directs 

the administration to develop and implement procedures for carrying out this goal and for notifying 

parents of its availability. 

The Board of Education (Board) recognizes capital equipment purchased by District taxpayers for 

educational purposes needs to be properly used and inventoried. The Board further recognizes that 

from time to time such educational capital equipment may be used by students or the community 

while away from the school. When it becomes necessary to loan educational equipment, the 

following guidelines shall be followed:  

1. A school equipment loan form needs to be completed by the borrower.

2. The equipment must be returned within the designated time stated on the loan form.

3. Prior approval of the Principal or the Principal’s designee must be received.

4. A responsible adult, (i.e., parent, guardian, grandparent) must sign indicating their

responsibility for the care and return of the equipment. 

5. Pick up and return of the equipment must be made by the responsible adult not the student.

6. The borrower assumes all cost for the repair or replacement of any borrowed equipment.

7. Borrowed or loaned equipment except musical instruments should not be transported to and

from school on the school bus. 

8. Equipment will be borrowed or loaned for educational purposes or community sponsored

functions, only. 

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes 

10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes. 

Policy adopted: August 30, 2004 WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Revised: Westport, Connecticut 

September 2, 2020     Page 25



P 6159 

Instruction 

 

Individualized Education Program/Special Education Program 

 

The individualized education program shall be based upon the diagnostic findings of the 

evaluation study.  The Planning and Placement Team shall base recommendations for any 

changes in a child’s individualized education program upon the child’s current individualized 

education program and any information relating to the child’s current educational performance. 

 

Each Planning and Placement Team shall develop, or revise, whichever is appropriate, the 

individualized education program for each child requiring special education and related services 

prior to the beginning of each school year.  In the case of a student enrolled after the last day of 

the previous school year, this process shall be completed by October first of the school year. 

 

The individualized education program shall be a written statement developed by the PPT which 

shall include the following: 

 

1. A statement of the child’s present levels of academic achievement and functional 

performance, including, where appropriate, academic achievement, social adaptation, 

prevocational and vocational skills, psychomotor skills and self-help skills; 

 

2. A statement of annual educational goals for the school year “reasonably calculated to 

enable the child to make progress appropriate in light of the child’s circumstances,” under the 

child’s individualized educational program; 

 

3. A statement of how the child’s progress toward meeting the annual goals will be 

measured and when periodic reports will be available on the progress the child is making 

toward meeting the annual goals. (such as through the use of quarterly or other periodic 

reports, concurrent with the issuance of report cards) The child’s educational program must 

be appropriately ambitious in light of his/her circumstances and provide the opportunity to 

meet challenging objectives. 

 

4. A statement of short-term instructional objectives for students with disabilities who take 

alternative assessments aligned to alternative achievement standards; (Benchmarks or short 

term objectives in addition to annual goals are not required for all other students with 

disabilities.) 

 

5. A statement of specific educational services needed by the child, including a description 

of special education, related services and supplementary aids and services, based on peer-

reviewed research to the extent practicable, which are needed to meet the needs of the child. 

Such description shall include the type of transportation necessary and a statement of the 

recommended instructional settings;  

 

September 2, 2020     Page 26



6. The date when those services will begin and length of time the services will be given with 

the length of the school day and school year needed to meet the child’s special education 

needs, including criteria to determine when services will no longer be needed; 

 

7. A description of the extent to which the child will be involved in and make progress in 

the general education curriculum defined as the same curricula for nondisabled children.  

This shall include a description of how the regular education program will be modified to 

meet the child’s needs; 

 

8. A list of the individuals who shall implement the individualized program; and 

 

9. In the case of a residential placement, whether such placement is being recommended 

because of the need for services other than educational services. 

 

10. If it is determined that the child will take an alternate assessment on a State or District 

assessment of student achievement, the IEP must contain in a statement of why the child 

cannot participate in the regular assessment and why the particular alternate assessment 

selected is appropriate for the child. 

 

11. Beginning not later than the first IEP to be in effect when the child is sixteen (16), with 

the exception of students identified with autism for which the age is fourteen (14), and 

updated annually thereafter, a statement of appropriate, measurable post-secondary goals 

based upon age appropriate transition assessments related to training, education, employment 

and where appropriate, independent living skills and the transition services needed to assist 

the child in reaching those goals. 

 

12. Beginning not later than one year before the student reaches the age of majority (18), a 

statement informing the student of his/her rights under IDEA. 

 

13. For a child identified as deaf or hearing impaired, the IEP which includes a language and 

communications plan shall address: 

 

(i) the child’s primary language or mode of communication; 

 

(ii) opportunities for direct communication between the child and his/her peers and 

professional personnel in the primary child’s language or mode of communication; 

 

(iii) educational options available to the child; 

 

(iv) the qualifications of teachers and other professional personnel administering the 

plan for the child, including their proficiency in the child’s primary language or mode of 

communication; 

 

(v) the accessibility of academic instruction, school services and extracurricular 

activities to the child; 

 

September 2, 2020     Page 27



(vi) assistive devices and services for the child; 

 

(vii) communication and physical environment accommodations for the child; 

 

(viii) an emergency communications plan that includes procedures for alerting the child 

of an emergency situation and ensuring that the specific needs of the child are met during 

the emergency situation. Such plan is to be developed for a student identified as deaf, 

hard of hearing, or both blind or visually impaired and deaf. 

 

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes 

   10-76a Definitions (as amended by PA 06-18) 

   10-76b State supervision of special education programs and services.  Regulations. 

(as amended by PA 12-173) 

   10-76d Duties and powers of boards of education to provide special education 

programs and services. (as amended by June Special Session PA 15-5, Section 277 

and PA 19-184) 

   10-76g State aid for special education. 

10-76ff Procedures for determining if a child requires special education 

(as amended by PA 06-18) 

   10-76h Special education hearing and review procedure. 

10-76jj Language and communication plan as part of individualized 

education program for child identified as deaf or hard of hearing (as 

amended by PA 19-184) 

   PA 06-18 An Act Concerning Special Education 

   State Board of Education Regulations 

34 C.F.R. 300 et seq. Assistance to States for Education of Handicapped 

Children. 

   300.14 Special education definitions. 

   300.340-349 Individualized education programs. 

   300.503 Independent educational assessment. 

   300.533 Placement procedures. 

   300.550-556 Least restrictive environment. 

P.L. 108-446 The Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement 

Act of 2004 

September 2, 2020     Page 28



PA 12-173 An Act Concerning Individualized Education Programs and 

Other Issues Relating to Special Education 

   SDE Guidance Addressing Timeline for Initial Evaluations, Dec. 21, 2018 

   Rowley v. Board of Education, 485 U.S.-176 (1982) 

   Endrew F. v. Douglas County School District RE-1, 15-827 U.S. (2017) 

A.M. v. N.Y. City Department of Education, 845F.3d 523, 541 (2d 

Cir.1997) 

Mrs. B., v. Milford Board of Education 103 F. 3d 1114, 1121 (2d Cir. 

1997) 

 

 

 

Policy adopted:   WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

  Westport, Connecticut 

 

September 2, 2020     Page 29



P 6171.2 

Instruction 

Special Education 

Preschool Special Education 

The Board of Education (Board) recognizes the value of special education and its responsibility in 

ensuring that all resident preschool children with disabilities have the opportunity to participate in 

special programs and services from which they may benefit. The Board shall maintain an early 

intervention program for preschool-aged children identified through the "Birth to Age Three" 

screening process under regulations imposed by the Individuals with Disabilities Act (IDEA) which 

identifies children with special education needs or developmental delays. 

The District's program shall be based upon the "reverse mainstreaming model" which maintains a 

significant number of non-disabled (regular education) students who serve as role models for the 

students with identified special needs.  will provide a preschool program consistent with the 

regulations delineated by the State. The Director/Supervisor of Special Education is responsible to 

coordinate and evaluate the program annually to make recommendation to the Superintendent of 

Schools or his/her designee. 

The Board authorizes the Superintendent of Schools to establish administrative practices and 

procedures to carry out this responsibility. Such administrative practices and procedures shall 

include: 

1. Locating and identifying all preschool children, between the ages of three and five, with

disabilities pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Individuals with Disabilities Act 

(IDEA). The register of children eligible to receive preschool special education services 

is to be maintained and revised annually by the Director/Supervisor of Special 

Education; 

2. Ensuring that the parents of preschool age children with disabilities have received and

understand the request for consent for evaluation of their child; 

3. Developing an individualized education program (IEP) for each preschool age child

with a disability requiring services; 

4. Appointing and training appropriately qualified personnel;

5. Providing transportation to students enrolled in the program; who require it, per the PPT

decision; 

6. Maintaining lists records as required by the State Education Department pertaining to

the number of children with disabilities who are being served, as well as those identified 

disabled students not served; and 

7. Reporting as required to the State Education Department; and

8. Ensuring the smooth transition from infant to preschool programs.

The Planning and Placement Team's responsibilities will include the evaluation and 

recommendation for placement in appropriate approved programs and the provision of appropriate 

special education programs and services for each preschool child with a disability. Children 

recommended for an educational program may enter at various points throughout the school year. 

It is ultimately the responsibility of the Board to provide the appropriate approved preschool 

program and services for the District children. Should the PPT's determination and 

recommendations differ from parent or guardian preference, placement may be appealed by a parent September 2, 2020     Page 30



or guardian through the procedures outlined in IDEA. 

 

The Board directs the Superintendent or his/her designee to ensure that the District considers that 

adequate and appropriate space and personnel are made available for such programs and services. 

 

Tuition 

Non-disabled (regular general education) students enrolled in the "reverse mainstreaming" 

preschool program will be required to pay tuition for the program. Identified students or students 

who qualify for free or reduced lunch will not be charged for tuition. The Board will annually 

establish the tuition rate for the following school year. The Board, through the Superintendent or 

his/her designee, will establish a monthly payment plan. Failure to make such tuition payment may 

result in discontinuation of enrollment in the program. 

 
 

 

Legal Reference:  

 

Connecticut General Statutes 

10 76a Definitions. 

10 76b State supervision of special education programs and services. 

10 76c Receipt and use of money and personal property. 

10 76d Duties and powers of boards of education to provide special education programs and 

services. (as amended by PA 97- 

114) 

10 76e School construction grant for cooperative regional special education facilities. 

10 76f Definition of terms used in formula for state aid for special education. 

10 76g State aid for special education. 

10 76h Special education hearing and review procedure. Mediation of disputes. 

10 76i Advisory council for special education. 

10 76j Five year plan for special education. 

10 76k Development of experimental educational programs. 

State Board of Education Regulations. 

10 76m Auditing claims for special education assistance. 

10 76a 1 et seq. Definitions. 

10 76b 1 through 10 76b 4 Supervision and administration. 

10 76d 1 through 10 76d 19 Conditions of instruction. 

10 76h 1 through 10 76h 2 Due process. 

10 76l 1 Program Evaluation. 

10 145a 24 through 10 145a 31 Special Education (re teacher certification). 

34 C.F.R. 3000 Assistance to States for Education for Handicapped Children. 

American with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq. 

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, 20 U.S.C. §1400 et seq. as amended by P.L. 105-17. 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 504, 29 U.S.C. §794. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 September 2, 2020     Page 31



Policy adopted:  WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 Westport, Connecticut 

September 2, 2020     Page 32



P 6172.4 
 

 

Instruction 

 

Parent and Family Engagement Policy for Title I Students 

 

 

In accordance with Section 1010 of the Every Student Succeeds Act (“ESSA”), Public Law 1114-

95, it is the policy of the Westport Board of Education to provide parents and family members of 

students participating in the district’s Title I programs meaningful opportunities to participate in the 

education of their children within these programs.  To facilitate parental and family participation, the 

Board encourages parents and family members of Title I eligible students to be involved in regular 

meetings, communications, and activities that will inform them about the district’s Title I programs, 

to participate in the improvement of such programs and to help improve their child’s progress within 

these programs. 

 

This policy has been developed jointly with, and agreed upon by, parents and family members of 

children participating in Title I programs.  The district shall distribute this written Parent and Family 

Engagement Policy to parents and family members of participating students in an understandable 

and uniform format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents can understand.  The 

policy shall be made available to the public and updated periodically, as necessary to carry out the 

requirements of the parent and family engagement portion of Section 1010 of ESSA.   

 

The Board shall conduct, with the meaningful involvement of Title I parents and family members, 

an annual evaluation of the content and effectiveness of this policy in improving the academic 

quality of the schools receiving Title I funds.  The Board shall use the findings of such evaluation to 

design evidence-based strategies for more effective parental involvement, and to revise, if necessary, 

the policy.  Such annual evaluation shall include identifying:   

 

1. barriers to greater participation by parents in activities authorized by 20 U.S.C. § 6318 

(with particular attention to parents who are economically disadvantaged, are disabled, 

have limited English proficiency, have limited literacy, or are of any racial or ethnic 

minority background); 

 

2. the needs of parent and family members to assist with the learning of their children, 

including engaging with school personnel and teachers; and  

 

3. strategies to support successful school and family interactions.   

 

Each year, each school within the district that is involved in Title I programs shall conduct a 

meeting, at a convenient time, to involve parents in the planning, review and improvement of 

programs funded by Title I.  All parents of participating children must be invited and encouraged to 

attend.  At this meeting, parents shall be given a description and explanation of the Title I programs, 

the curriculum in use at the school, the forms of academic assessment used to measure student 

progress, the achievement levels of the challenging State academic standards, and information 

regarding the importance of parental involvement and their right to be involved.   

 

In addition to the required annual meeting, and if requested by parents, schools within the district 

that are involved in Title I programs shall offer opportunities for regular meetings at flexible times of 

the day in order to allow parents to formulate suggestions for the Board’s Title I programs and their 

application to their child(ren)’s programs; and to participate, as appropriate, in decisions related to September 2, 2020     Page 33



the education of their children.  Parents will be given opportunities to participate in the joint 

development of the district’s Title I plan, as required by Section 1006 of ESSA, and in the process of 

any school review and improvement in accordance with the State’s plan, as required by Section 

1111 of ESSA. At any time, if a parent is dissatisfied with a school’s Title I program, he/she shall 

have the opportunity to submit comments for review at the district level.    

 

The Board will provide the coordination, technical assistance and other support necessary to assist 

and build capacity of Title I schools in planning and implementing effective parent and family 

involvement activities to improve student academic achievement and school performance.  Parental 

and family engagement in Title I programs shall be coordinated and integrated with parental and 

family engagement strategies, to the extent feasible, under other federal, state, local and district 

programs. 

 

In order to build the schools’ and parents’ capacity for strong parental involvement, the Board shall: 

 

1. provide assistance to parents of students participating in Title I programs in 

understanding topics such as the challenging state academic standards, state and local 

academic assessments, the requirements under Title I, and how to monitor their child’s 

progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children;  

 

2. provide materials and training to help parents to work with their children, such as literacy 

training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright piracy); 

 

3. educate teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, staff and administrators, 

with the assistance of parents, about how to better communicate and work with parents; 

 

4. to the extent feasible and appropriate, coordinate and integrate parent involvement 

programs and activities with other federal, state and local programs, including public 

preschool programs, conduct other activities that encourage and support parent 

participation; 

 

5. ensure that information related to school and parent programs, meetings and other 

activities is sent to participating parents in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a 

language the parents can understand; 

 

6. provide such other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may 

request; and 

 

7. inform parents and parental organizations of the existence and purpose of parent resource 

centers within the State. 

 

School-Parent Compact 

 

This policy further requires that each school involved in Title I programs shall jointly develop with 

parents of participating children a school-parent compact that outlines how parents, staff, and 

students will share the responsibility for improved student academic achievement and the means by 

which the school and parents will build and develop a partnership to help children achieve the 

State’s high standards.  The school-parent compact shall: 

 

1. describe the school’s responsibility to provide high-quality curriculum and instruction in 

a supportive and effective learning environment that enables Title I students to meet the 

challenging State academic standards; September 2, 2020     Page 34



 

2. indicate the ways in which each parent will be responsible for supporting their child’s 

learning; volunteering in their child’s classroom; and participating, as appropriate, in 

decisions related their child’s education and positive use of extracurricular time; 

 

3. address the importance of ongoing teacher-parent communication through parent-teacher 

conferences, frequent reports to parents, reasonable access to school staff, and 

opportunities to volunteer, participate in, and observe their child’s classroom activities; 

and 

 

4. ensure regular, two-way, meaningful communication between family members and 

school staff, and, to the extent practicable, in a language that family members can 

understand. 

 

The Board authorizes the Superintendent, or his/her designee, to develop a school-parent compact 

and other procedures such as those relating to meetings, parent communication and parental 

involvement activities, as he/she deems necessary in order to ensure compliance with this policy. 

 

The Superintendent is required to include information about parental involvement and actions taken 

to improve parental involvement in the strategic school profile he or she submits annually to the 

Board of Education and Commissioner of Education.  Such actions to improve parental involvement 

may include methods to engage parents in the planning and improvement of school programs and to 

increase support to parents working at home with their children on learning activities. 

 

 

Connecticut General Statutes: 

 

 10-220(c) Duties of Boards of Education 

 

Federal Law: 

 

 20 U.S.C. § 6318, as amended by Every Student Succeeds Act, Pub. L. No.   

 114-95, § 1010 (2015). 

 20 U.S.C. § 7801.  Definitions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy adopted:  WESTPORT PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

 Westport, Connecticut September 2, 2020     Page 35


	CABE 5141.22 Infectious Diseases
	CABE 6114.8 Pandemic Policy 2020
	P6114.8 revised pandemic policy
	How Germs Spread: The main way that illnesses like colds and flu are spread is from person to person in respiratory droplets of coughs and sneezes.  This is called "droplet spread."  This can happen when droplets from a cough or sneeze of an infected ...
	Cover your mouth and nose when coughing or sneezing: Cough or sneeze into a tissue and then throw it away.  Cover your cough or sneeze if you do not have a tissue.  Then, clean your hands, and do so every time you cough or sneeze.
	The "Happy Birthday" song helps keep your hands clean?  Not exactly.  Yet it is recommended that when you wash your hands – with soap and warm water – that you wash for 15 to 20 seconds.  That's about the same time it takes to sing the “Happy Birthday...
	Alcohol-based hand wipes and gel sanitizers work too: When soap and water are not available, alcohol-based disposable hand wipes or gel sanitizers may be used.  You can find them in most supermarkets and drugstores. If using gel, rub your hands until ...

	Germs and Children:  Remind children to practice healthy habits too, because germs spread, especially at school.
	More Facts, Figures, and How-Tos:  CDC and its partner agencies and organizations offer a great deal of information about handwashing and other things you can do to stop the germs that cause flu, the common cold, and other illnesses.
	6114.8

	6114.8 Appendix 2

	6114.81 CABE Emergency Suspension of Policy
	4118.5 AND 4218.5 Acceptable Computer Network Use REDLINE



